
STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD
AGENDA

Venue: Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Monday, 12th August, 2019
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby               Tel: 01946 598328

1. Appointment of Chair 

2. Apologies for Absence 

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. Minutes of the Meeting held on 4 June 2019 1 - 2

5. NDA Mission Progress Report 3 - 20

6. Nuclear Position Statements 21 - 22

7. Nuclear Sector Deal - Verbal Update 

8. Nuclear Projects Update 23 - 28

9. Exempt Information 

The Chair to move:
That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item on the 
grounds that, if they were present, there could be disclosed to them exempt 
information as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the 
Act.

10. Planning - Verbal Update 

Public Document Pack



11. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be held on 
Tuesday 22 October 2019 at 2:00pm (venue to be confirmed).

Membership: Councillors Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), David Banks, Sean Cullen, 
Gemma Dinsdale, David Moore, Steven Morgan and Sam Pollen

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 4 JUNE 2019

Present: Councillors Felicity Wilson (in the Chair), David Banks, Gemma Dinsdale, David 
Moore, Steven Morgan, Sam Pollen

Officers: Steve Smith (Interim Nuclear Projects Manager) and Robert Ward (Nuclear Sector 
Development Manager)

SN 19/1 Apologies for Absence 

No apologies for absence were received.

SN 19/2 Declarations of Interest 

There were no Declarations of Interests made at this meeting. 

SN 19/3 Minutes of the Meeting held on  6 February 2019 

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2019 be signed by the 
Chair as a correct record.

SN 19/4 Nuclear Team Overview 

The Nuclear Sector Development Manager introduced a report, which outlined the role, scope 
and membership of the Nuclear Team, to inform all Members including new Members of the 
Board following recent local elections. 

The report provided Members with an analysis of current work-streams and an indication of 
priority issues that would need to be considered by the Board over coming months. Following 
discussion around the detailed elements of the work-streams it was:

RESOLVED:- that Members note the information presented in the report and familiarise 
themselves with the issues covered on recent SNEB agendas.

Cllrs Banks and Pollen requested paper copies of a number of the references cited in the 
paper.

SN 19/5 Nuclear Position Statements 

The Board considered a report that provided the background on the role and purpose of the 
Council’s Nuclear Position Statements and the need for the Statements to be updated in light 
of a range of international, national and local policy drivers, as described within the paper. 
Following a number of comments it was:

RESOLVED:- that Members of the Board provide comments on the draft position statements 
to be circulated in advance of the next meeting of the Board, for endorsement at that meeting 
and for subsequent consideration by Executive.

SN 19/6 Nuclear Prospectus 

The Board received a report setting out the background and purpose behind a proposal to 
prepare a new Economic Vision and a Nuclear Prospectus document for Copeland, which will 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



highlight the value of West Cumbria’s nuclear capability, skills and assets in delivery of the 
Government’s Industrial Strategy and Nuclear Sector Deal. Members sought clarification on a 
number of issues including the target audience for the prospectus and links to the Industrial 
Strategy.

RESOLVED:- that Members of the Board note the proposal contained within the paper.

SN 19/7 Nuclear Projects 

The Interim Nuclear Projects Manager updated the Board on Nuclear projects principally the  
Moorside Project, the North West Coast Connections Project and the Government’s search for 
a willing community and suitable site for a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF). It was noted 
that a new Energy White paper is expected from Government in the summer which may set 
out the context for the role of new nuclear in the future energy generation strategy for the UK 
and similarly a consultation is awaited on a new National Policy Statement (NPS) for large 
scale nuclear power stations to replace the current NPS which covers the period to 2025. In 
relation to GDF it was noted that following the launch of the Government’s ‘Working with 
Communities’ policy in December the Council had embarked on a programme of Member 
briefings with the ultimate aim of developing a Council position over the coming months. The 
programme was put on hold during the period of local elections but would now be re-started 
with the next session identified for 17th July. 

RESOLVED :- that the update be received. 

SN 19/8 Exempt Information 

The Deputy Chair moved and it was duly seconded and
 
RESOLVED - That the press and public be excluded for the next item of business in view of 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 4 of Part I of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended.

SN 19/9 Planning Update 

The Principal Planning Officer provided the Board with an update of developments on the 
Sellafield site.

RESOLVED:- That the Update be noted.

SN 19/10 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be held on a date to be 
confirmed.

The Meeting closed at 4.15 pm

Chair

Page 2



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 120819

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) | Mission Progress Report

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Mitchell McCombe & Rob Ward

Summary:

The Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) has published a Mission Progress Report. This 
is the first-of-a-kind document that outlines the progress made against the NDA’s Strategy. 
The Board will receive a presentation from NDA officials on the progress report followed by 
an opportunity to ask questions.

Recommendation:

1. That Members familiarise themselves with the Mission Progress Report and provide any 
comments or queries the Nuclear Sector Development Manager following the meeting.

1. Introduction and Background

1.1. The NDA is required by law to produce an Annual Report and Accounts every year to 
Parliament under obligations outlined in the Energy Act of 2004. Alongside these 
reports, in response to a recommendation by the Public Accounts Committee in 
relation to openness and transparency of the NDA’s progress reporting, on 4th July 
2019 the NDA published a “Mission Progress Report” (“The Report”).

1.2. The Report is Appended to this paper for reference and is available via the following 
link:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-
mission-progress-report 

1.3. The report is aligned to the NDA’s 4 strategic themes:

 Spent Fuels: to ensure safe, secure and cost-effective lifecycle management of 
spent fuels;

 Nuclear Materials: to ensure safe, secure and cost-effective lifecycle 
management of nuclear materials;

 Integrated Waste Management: to ensure that wastes are managed in a 
manner that protects people and the environment, now and in the future, and 
in ways that comply with government policies and provide value for money;

 Site Decommissioning & Remediation: to decommission and remediate our 
designated sites, and release them for other uses.

1.4. The figures in The Report are correct as of 31st March 2019. As data matures, along 
with the reduction of uncertainty of the inventory and the progression in the lifecycle, 
it will be subject to change.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-mission-progress-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-mission-progress-report


2. Council Position Statements

2.1. When reading the report, Members are advised to take into consideration the 
Council’s current agreed position statements on relevant matters, noting that these 
are subject to change under a separate agenda item:

2.2. Spent Fuel & Nuclear Materials (SF & NM)

The Council recognises that until such a time as a Geological Disposal Facility, other 
long-term management solution or alternative use is available, Spent Fuel and Nuclear 
Materials must be stored safely and securely. Where this results in consolidated 
storage at Sellafield, the Council expects the NDA and SF & NM producers to mitigate 
any negative consequences for Copeland’s communities and the environment. The 
positive social and economic benefits associated with such developments will be 
proportionate to the critical national service that the Borough continues to provide.

Where the Borough is identified as the recipient location for the management or 
storage of Spent Fuels or Nuclear Materials in the nation’s interest, the Council 
expects that a comprehensive approach will be developed for these receipts, so that 
arrangements for planning authority accountabilities, community acceptance and 
good governance can be properly discharged, and the impacts on the delivery of the 
wider Sellafield mission can be understood.

The Council supports the re-use of plutonium as a key UK asset and endorses the 
Government-led approach to identify proposals to develop facilities for the reuse of 
plutonium in a safe and economically advantageous way. The Council’s view is that 
such facilities should be developed close to the plutonium store in Copeland.

As the taxpayer is due to commit £1bn to a new repackaging facility for this material, 
we are assured that the UK’s plutonium stockpile will be stored safely and securely. 
However, the longevity of the plutonium storage in the absence of a decision about 
disposition is something that we expect the host community to be engaged on.

2.3. Management of Higher Activity Radioactive Waste

Copeland Borough Council supports the NDA’s move to an Integrated Waste 
Management strategy incorporating Low, Intermediate and High-Level Waste, but is 
opposed to the proliferation of nuclear waste disposal sites away from the existing 
nuclear licensed sites across Copeland. The Council will seek to form a view on the 
benefits or otherwise of proposals relating to the Near Surface Disposal (NSD) of 
Intermediate Level Wastes (ILW) and will await further information from the NDA on 
this approach before forming that view.

The Council recognises that until such a time as a GDF or other long-term 
management solution is available, radioactive waste must be stored safely and 
securely. Where this results in consolidated storage at Sellafield, the Council expects 
the NDA and waste producers to mitigate any negative consequences for Copeland’s 
communities and the environment. The positive social and economic benefits 

Page 4



associated with such developments will be proportionate to the critical national 
service that the Borough continues to provide.

2.4. Site Decommissioning & Remediation: 

Based on the expected publication of the National Narrative on Waste Management 
in the Context of Sustainable Decommissioning and Clean-up, the Council will seek to 
form a view on the benefits or otherwise of proposals relating to the options under 
consideration by the NDA for Site Decommissioning and Remediation.

3. Conclusion

3.1. Members will receive a presentation of The Report by NDA officials, followed by 
opportunity for questions.

3.2. Members are asked to submit any comments or queries to the Nuclear Sector 
Development Manager following the meeting, for inclusion in a formal response to 
the NDA, if required.

APPENDIX A – NDA Mission Progress Report 2019

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Mission Progress Report
Published July 2019

Nuclear
Decommissioning
Authority

P
age 7



Introduction
TELLING THE STORY OF PROGRESS AGAINST OUR STRATEGY

NDA STRATEGY

NDA BUSINESS PLAN

Purpose: Energy Act 

requirement that describes how 

we will deliver our mission

Period covered: 100+ years

Published: every 5 years

Public consultation: 12 weeks

Purpose: Energy Act 

requirement that describes what 

the main activities will be across our 

estate over the next 3 years and 

what funding will be available for 

them. Provides a 20 year picture of 

programme outcomes.

Period covered: 3 years (1 year in 

detail)

Published: every year

Public consultation: 8-10 weeks

MID-YEAR 

PERFORMANCE REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Purpose: To provide a progress 

update against Business Plan 

targets. Incorporates NDA group 

targets.

Period covered: 6 months

Published: every year

Purpose: Energy Act requirement that describes what 

has been achieved and what has been spent. Reports 

against Business Plan targets and gives updates on 

Priority Programmes and Major Projects. It will also 

contain an overall progress update against our mission.

Period covered: 1 year

Published: every year

NDA MISSION PROGRESS

Purpose: To provide our stakeholders with a clear, 

concise and simple story of NDA Mission Progress since 

2005, that demonstrates delivery of NDA’s 4 strategic 

themes and outcomes as explained in NDA Strategy 2016.

Period covered: 100+ years

Published: every 5 years

SPENT FUELS

NUCLEAR MATERIALS

INTEGRATED WASTE 

MANAGEMENT

SITE DECOMMISSIONING 

AND REMEDIATION

THE MISSION

Our mission is to clean up the UK’s earliest nuclear sites safely, 
securely and cost-effectively with care for people and the 
environment.

THE MISSION PROGRESS REPORT

This year we have introduced a new approach to reporting progress against that mission.

We have focused on the 4 themes we outlined in our strategy that are common across all 

sites and enable us to measure our achievements. Whether it’s managing the spent fuels 

from Magnox reactors, safely transferring and storing nuclear materials in more modern 

facilities or treating and packaging various types of radioactive waste, it’s all leading us to 

the ultimate goal of being able to hand back the land we currently own, making it available 

to communities for other uses. 

Working with our businesses and key stakeholders, we generated this report that 

demonstrates how far we have travelled since 2005, and how much further is left to go 

over the next 120-plus years.

We’ve determined what each of the key steps or ‘strategic outcomes’ are that we 

need to achieve in order to complete our mission. We’ve applied a consistent set of 

measurements or ‘metrics’ for the data that shows what materials and buildings we 

have to manage and, crucially, we indicate what is happening now and what important 

decisions need to take place in order for us to complete our mission.

HOW TO READ THIS REPORT

This report is structured to illustrate the progress against the strategic objectives 

outlined in our strategy. 

In the fi rst 3 pages you’ll see a very high level summary of what the mission is and how far 

we have progressed since 2005. Each of the 4 themes has an overview page to explain 

our objectives and the steps we need to take. Each step (or ‘strategic outcome’) shows 

the estimated inventory that has to be managed and what capability there is to deliver it. 

A strategic outcome may have a priority placed on it by stakeholders subject to the nature 

of its hazards or risks.

The fi gures contained within this report, are correct up to 31 March 2019 from key data 

sources and programmes. As data matures, along with the reduction of uncertainty of the 

inventory and the progression in the lifecycle, it will be subject to change. Excluded from 

this report are critical enablers, liquid and gaseous discharges, non NDA liabilities and non 

radioactive waste at this time.

STRATEGIC THEMES

1

P
age 8



Delivering our mission

For the purposes of this report, we break the mission down into 
4 strategic themes enabling work to be clearly defined and prioritised. 

These areas are closely linked. However, the most urgent task is dealing with sites’ highest hazard materials: spent fuel, 
nuclear materials and highly radioactive wastes. Once the inventory has been made safe, the redundant nuclear facilities can 
be dismantled and demolished.

Our strategy defines our approach to dealing 

with the inventory of uranics and plutonium 

currently stored on some of our sites.

Our strategy defines our approach to 

managing the diverse range of spent fuels 

for which we are responsible, which are 

divided into Magnox, Oxide and Exotic.

REUSE OR

DISPOSE

WASTE

INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT

Removing all high hazard waste from 
legacy facilities and storing safely

CURRENT PRIORITY:

RETRIEVAL AND 

TREATMENT

SITE DECOMMISSIONING AND REMEDIATION

Release land for other uses

CURRENT PRIORITY:

DECONTAMINATING 

AND DISMANTLING

GEOLOGICAL 

DISPOSAL 

FACILITY (GDF) 

AND LLWR

REDUNDANT 

BUILDINGS

WASTE

DISPOSE

OR

EXPORT

REDUNDANT 

BUILDINGS

REDUNDANT 

BUILDINGS

PLUTONIUM

URANIUM

NUCLEAR MATERIALS

Safely managing our inventory of 
plutonium and uranium, whilst exploring 
options for reuse or disposal.

CURRENT PRIORITY:

SAFE AND SECURE 

STORAGE AND 

CONSOLIDATION

MISSION END

1,046 hectares of land released for other uses

PL

UR

SPENT FUELS

Getting spent nuclear fuel out of reactors 
before reprocessing finishes. 

CURRENT PRIORITY: 

DEFUELING AND 

REPROCESSING

DEDESIGNATE 

AND REUSE

NUCLEAR MATERIALSSPENT FUELS

Our strategy defines our approach to 

decommissioning redundant facilities and 

managing land quality in order that each site can 

be released for its next planned use.

Our strategy considers how we manage all 

forms of waste arising from operating and 

decommissioning our sites, including waste 

retrieved from legacy facilities.

INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT SITE DECOMMISSIONING & REMEDIATION

g
re

a
te

r 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty

o
n
 u

lt
im

a
te

 v
o

lu
m

e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

NOTE: this diagram is purely 

indicative of the mission and does 

not represent the complexity 

of all of the themes.

The Mission Progress Report 

excludes Critical Enablers at this time.

g
re

a
te

r 
ra

n
g
e
 o

f 
u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty

o
n
 u

lt
im

a
te

 v
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

2

P
age 9



hectares of designated land on nuclear 

licensed sites for clean up under the Energy Act 2004

NDA Strategy

effective from April 2016, p19

“Our mission will be complete when we 
release our sites for other uses.”

953
hectares 
remaining 

2025 2035 2045 2075 2085 209520652055 2115 2125 21352105

NDA

established 

Progress to 2019

Since it was established in 2005, the NDA has made excellent progress in dealing with some of the most complex nuclear 
risks in the world. Two of our strategic outcomes (see timeline below) have been achieved and good progress is being 
made with the safe management of nuclear inventory and reduction of its risks.

More strategic outcomes will be achieved with the closure of the reprocessing facilities at Sellafi eld and the building of 
new modern treatment and storage facilities to manage nuclear material and waste - ultimately working towards the fi nal 
disposal of  nuclear inventory and the release of land for other economic uses.

20152005

NDA mission

complete

NUCLEAR MATERIALS 

INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT 

SPENT FUELS 

SITE DECOMMISSIONING & REMEDIATION

ALL SITES DEFUELED OF

MAGNOX FUEL
ALL PLUTONIUM PRODUCED

ALL HLW TREATED ALL RADIOACTIVE BUILDINGS

- COMPLETED PRIMARY FUNCTION

ALL MAGNOX FUEL 

REPROCESSING COMPLETED
ALL PLUTONIUM CONSOLIDATED

ALL HLW IN INTERIM STORAGE ALL RADIOACTIVE BUILDINGS

- COMPLETED DECOMMISSIONING

ALL EXOTIC FUEL

CONSOLIDATION COMPLETED

ALL URANIUM PRODUCED

ALL WASTE REMOVED FROM

LEGACY PONDS AND SILOS

ALL ILW TREATED

ALL RADIOACTIVE BUILDINGS

- DEMOLISHED OR REUSED

ALL LAND DEDESIGNATED OR

REUSED

ALL EXOTIC FUEL DEFUELED
ALL URANIUM 

CONSOLIDATED

95% 95%

70% 46%

88% 80%

80% 26%

34% 86%

6%

9%

23%

 9%

43% 86%

PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGIC OUTCOMES

STRATEGIC OUTCOME:

All oxide legacy fuel retrieved

STRATEGIC OUTCOME:

All oxide fuel reprocessing completed

STRATEGIC OUTCOME:

All sites defueled of Magnox fuel

STRATEGIC OUTCOME:

All plutonium consolidated

STRATEGIC OUTCOME:

All HLW treated

STRATEGIC OUTCOME:

First site to complete its mission - Winfrith

3

P
age 10



STRATEGIC OUTCOMES - final steps to achieving our mission

PROGRESS  
 95% 88%

ALL SITES
DEFUELED OF
MAGNOX FUEL

ALL MAGNOX FUEL 
REPROCESSING
COMPLETED

79%
ALL EXOTIC FUEL
REPROCESSING
COMPLETED

43%
ALL EXOTIC FUEL
DEFUELED

THE NEXT 4 STRATEGIC
OUTCOMES TO BE 
ACHIEVED

1 3 13 11

Spent Fuels 

SPENT MAGNOX FUEL

ALL SITES DEFUELED  2020 

ALL LEGACY FUEL RETRIEVED  2025 

MAGNOX FUEL REPROCESSING COMPLETED  2020 

ALL REMAINING MAGNOX FUEL IN INTERIM STORAGE  2025

ALL REMAINING MAGNOX FUEL DISPOSED  2125

SPENT OXIDE FUEL

ALL EDFE OXIDE FUEL RECEIVED 2035 

ALL LEGACY FUEL RETRIEVED 2016 

ALL OXIDE FUEL REPROCESSING COMPLETED 2019 

ALL REMAINING OXIDE FUEL IN INTERIM STORAGE 2035

ALL REMAINING OXIDE FUEL DISPOSED 2125

SPENT EXOTICS FUEL

ALL EXOTIC FUEL DEFUELED  2022 

ALL EXOTIC FUEL CONSOLIDATED*  2028 

ALL EXOTIC FUEL REPROCESSING COMPLETED  2020 

ALL REMAINING EXOTIC FUEL IN INTERIM STORAGE  2028

ALL REMAINING EXOTIC FUEL DISPOSED  2125

WHAT ARE SPENT FUELS?

HOW ARE THE FUELS MANAGED?

WHAT HAS HAPPENED SINCE 2005?

WHAT HAS TO HAPPEN NEXT?

Fuel from a nuclear reactor is ‘spent’ once it has been used to generate 
electricity.

Spent fuels are transported to Sellafield for management. Some spent 
fuels are reprocessed into uranium and plutonium, potentially for re-use, 
leaving some residual waste. Once reprocessing ends completely in 
2020, remaining spent fuel will be stored for future disposal.

The Magnox reactors are now nearly defueled with only Wylfa and Calder 
Hall left to complete and most fuel has been reprocessed. Sellafield 
continues to receive AGR fuel under commercial contracts with EDF 
Energy, some of which has already been reprocessed, the rest will be 
placed in interim storage. No more fuel will be reprocessed now, with the 
last fuel sent to THORP in 2018.

Sellafield’s last reprocessing facility will end operations in 2020.  
All remaining spent fuel will be safely stored until a permanent solution for 
disposal is developed.

COMPLETED

COMPLETED

1

11

6

2

12

7

3

13

8

4

5

14

9

10

15

 

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY - SINCE 2005

Spent Oxide FuelSpent Magnox Fuel Spent Exotics Fuel
Opening stock 3,150 te
Receiving  6,220 te
Total  9,370 te

Opening stock 2,770 te
Defueling  4,140 te
Legacy 500 te
Total  7,410 te

Opening stock 179 te
Defueling  44 te
Total  223 te

Est. date of completion Priorities

ONR PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

MISSION 
END

R
E

U
S

E
/D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

OBJECTIVE  

To ensure safe, secure and cost-effective lifecycle 
management of spent fuels - Strategy 2016, p40

R
E

U
S

E
/D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

R
E

U
S

E
/D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

*irradiated fuel only
Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR)

4

P
age 11



Spent Fuels To ensure safe, secure and cost-effective 
lifecycle management of spent fuels.  
Strategy 2016, p40

SPENT MAGNOX FUEL

SPENT OXIDE FUEL

- To ensure the safe management and disposition of spent Magnox fuel, completing Magnox reprocessing as soon as practicable. Strategy 2016, p42

- To ensure the safe management and disposition of UK-owned oxide and overseas-origin fuels held in the UK, and to complete THORP reprocessing as soon
as practicable.   Strategy 2016, p44

THORP Receipt and Storage Pond
- Sellafield

received still to be 
received

2,550 3,670

Pile Fuel Storage Pond - Sellafield

3
retrieved still to 

retrieve

0

ALL LEGACY FUEL RETRIEVED IN 2016

41% COMPLETE

ALL EDF OXIDE FUEL RECEIVED BY 2035

95% COMPLETE

24 out of 26 reactors on 11 sites 
have been defueled.

defueled still to 
defuel

3,920 220

ALL SITES DEFUELED BY 2020

130
retrieved still to 

retrieve

First Generation Magnox 
Storage Pond (FGMSP) - Sellafield

ALL LEGACY FUEL RETRIEVED BY 2025

370

26% COMPLETE

Magnox reprocessing plants 
- Sellafield

6,060
reprocessed still to 

reprocess

850

ALL MAGNOX FUEL REPROCESSING 
COMPLETED IN 2020

88% COMPLETE

STRATEGIC DECISIONS

Fuel Handling Plant (FHP) - Sellafield
Interim Storage Facility - Sellafield

130
current 
inventory

ALL REMAINING MAGNOX FUEL IN 
INTERIM STORAGE BY 2025

2,090
current 
inventory

THORP Receipt and Storage Pond 
- Sellafield

ALL REMAINING OXIDE FUEL IN INTERIM 
STORAGE BY 2035

STRATEGIC DECISIONS

3,610
reprocessed still to 

reprocess

0

THORP Reprocessing Plant - Sellafield

ALL OXIDE FUEL REPROCESSING 
COMPLETED IN 2019

100% COMPLETE100% COMPLETE

370
still to
store 

5,760
estimated 
total 

Outputs

26% COMPLETE

36% COMPLETE

Strategic 
Outcomes

total

4,140
total

500
total

6,910

total

6,220
total

3
total

3,610

2,770te

Capability

Inventory

Plutonium
Uranium

Defueling 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 1    (tonnes) 

Legacy fuel retrieval 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 2    (tonnes)

Reprocessing 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 3      (tonnes)

Interim storage 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 4       (tonnes)

1 2 3 4

6 7 8 9

Receipts 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1        (tonnes) 

Legacy fuel retrieval 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2    (tonnes)

Reprocessing 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3        (tonnes)

Interim storage 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 4      (tonnes)

Outputs

In 2019, work continues to defuel the remaining Magnox reactors, retrieve high hazard fuel from at Sellafield, complete reprocessing and safely store the spent 
fuel on an interim basis. 

In 2019, we continue to receive fuel from EDF Energy sites. Reprocessing is now complete and we safely store the remaining spent fuel on an interim basis. 

Waste

Redundant 
Buildings

Strategic 
Outcomes

Capability

Inventory

Plutonium
Uranium

Waste

Redundant 
Buildings

All 11 UK Magnox power stations are closed. Out of 26 
reactors, only 2 still contain fuel: one at Calder Hall and 
one at Wylfa. These are in the process of despatching 
their spent fuel to Sellafield. 

Spent fuel arriving at Sellafield was originally stored in the 
First Generation Magnox Storage Pond (FGMSP) before 
transfer for reprocessing. FGMSP is one of the estate’s 
most hazardous facilities. 

The NDA aims to complete reprocessing of Magnox fuel as 
soon as possible, and to close the Magnox Reprocessing 
Plant by the end of 2020. It may not be practicable to reprocess 
all Magnox fuel and contingencies for interim storage of any 
remaining fuel are being developed.

After reprocessing ends the fuel will be put into interim
storage.

The NDA is committed, through commercial contracts, 
to receiving and managing spent fuel (including 3,150 te 
opening stock) from EDF’s 7 AGR power stations in 
England and Scotland. The last of these power stations is 
due to close around 2035, however, EDF has declared its 
intention to run them for as long as possible, providing it is 
safe and economic to continue. This provides a major 
source of income for the NDA.

Early spent oxide fuel was consigned to the Pile Fuel 
Storage Pond and has all been removed for storage in 
more modern facilities. 

The NDA, after studying options over a number of years, 
concluded in 2012 that THORP should close following 
completion of the current contracts. To ensure this remained 
the most viable and cost-effective option, the NDA has 
identified how to provide sufficient capacity at THORP to 
store all remaining fuel that is not reprocessed. This total 
includes the opening stock of 3,150 te.

Sellafield’s storage ponds contain approximately 2,090 te
of spent oxide fuel. Following THORP’s closure in 2018, 
it is expected that this fuel will be consolidated in the THORP 
Receipt and Storage Pond. Circa 3,670 te remaining from 
EDFs 7 AGR power stations will be received and transferred 
to the same facility by 2035. It will all be stored in the facility 
until a policy decision is made on the future management.

(840te at Sellafield, 
plus 1,930t 
arising from 

power 
generation)

ALL REMAINING MAGNOX 
FUEL DISPOSED OF BY 2125

NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF)
and Conditioning Plant

0% COMPLETE

0
volume 
disposed

500
still to be
disposed

Reuse/Disposal 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 5      (tonnes)

ALL REMAINING OXIDE 
FUEL DISPOSED OF BY 2125

NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF)
and Conditioning Plant

0% COMPLETE

Reuse/Disposal  
RISK REDUCTION STEP 5      (tonnes)

5

10

Spent Magnox Fuel
Opening stock  
Defueling 
Legacy
Total  

Spent Oxide Fuel
Opening stock 
Receiving 
Total 

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY - SINCE 2005

2,770 te
4,140 te

500 te
7,410 te

3,150 te
6,220 te
9,370 te

GROUP
PRIORITY

ONR
PRIORITY

GROUP
PRIORITY

500
estimated 
total

500
estimated 
total

Remaining fuel will need to be conditioned 
prior to transferring to a final disposal solution.
Strategic options are currently being developed 
for the final management of this fuel.

Opening 
stock
2005 

3,150te

Opening 
stock
2005 

GROUP
PRIORITY

3,670
still to
store 

Remaining fuel will need to be conditioned 
prior to transferring to a final disposal solution.
Strategic options are currently being developed 
for the final management of this fuel.

0
volume 
disposed

5,760 
still to be
disposed

5,760
estimated 
total

Magnox and Oxide

5

P
age 12



SPENT EXOTIC FUEL

STRATEGIC DECISIONS

- To ensure all our exotic fuels are managed and ultimately disposed of, with options developed for those fuels which cannot be effectively managed through our
routes for Magnox or oxide fuels. Strategy 2016, p48.

In 2019, work continues to defuel the Dounreay Fast Reactor, consolidate exotic fuel at Sellafield and complete reprocessing. Outputs

Plutonium
Uranium

Waste

Redundant 
Buildings

Spent Fuels To ensure safe, secure and cost-effective 
lifecycle management of spent fuels.  
Strategy 2016, p40

43% COMPLETE

Dounreay Fast Reactor (DFR)

defueled still to 
defuel

19 25

ALL EXOTIC FUEL DEFUELED BY 2022

19
consolidated still to 

consolidate

Consolidate stocks at Sellafield

ALL EXOTIC FUEL CONSOLIDATED 
BY 2028

37

34% COMPLETE

THORP and Magnox 
reprocessing plants - Sellafield

69
reprocessed still to 

reprocess

18

ALL EXOTIC FUEL REPROCESSING 
COMPLETED BY 2020

79% COMPLETE

THORP Receipt and 
Storage Pond - Sellafield

117
current 
inventory

ALL REMAINING EXOTIC FUEL IN 
INTERIM STORAGE BY 2028

136
estimated 
total 

86% COMPLETE

total

44
total
56

total

87

Defueling 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 1    (tonnes) 

Consolidation (irradiated) 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 2    (tonnes)

Reprocessing 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 3      (tonnes)

Interim storage 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 4       (tonnes)

11 12 13 14
Strategic 
Outcomes

Capability

Inventory

A number of very early experimental reactors tested novel 
kinds of fuel, producing spent fuel with distinctive 
characteristics. There is a much smaller quantity of these 
diverse, non-standard types compared to Oxide and 
Magnox and they are collectively known as Spent Exotic 
Fuels. Only one reactor still contains exotic fuel - 
the Dounreay Fast Reactor (DFR).

Spent Exotic fuel (irradiated) is being consolidated at 
Sellafield. A variety of Spent Exotic fuel was already at 
Sellafield in 2005 from earlier consolidation activities and 
historic overseas reprocessing contracts.

Until operations end, the Magnox Reprocessing Plant will 
treat DFR fuel moved to Sellafield. The majority of Spent 
Exotic fuel has already been reprocessed at Sellafield’s THORP 
and Magnox plants.

A variety of exotic fuels will remain in interim storage 
at Sellafield when reprocessing operations cease. 
They will remain in storage whilst options for 
management of this fuel are developed.

ALL REMAINING EXOTIC FUEL 
DISPOSED OF BY 2125

0% COMPLETE

0
volume 
disposed

136
still to be
disposed

Reuse/Disposal 
RISK REDUCTION STEP 5      (tonnes)

15

Spent Exotic Fuel
Opening stock 
Defueling 
Total 

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY - SINCE 2005

179 te
44 te

223 te

Opening 
stock
2005 

179te

GROUP
PRIORITY

GROUP
PRIORITY

19
still to
store

136
estimated 
total 

NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF)
and Conditioning Plant

Remaining fuel will need to be conditioned 
prior to transferring to a final disposal.
Strategic options are currently being developed 
for the final management of this fuel.

Magnox reprocessing - Fuel Handling Plant at Sellafield Oxide reprocessing - THORP at Sellafield Transportation of Exotic fuel to Sellafield

Exotics

GROUP
PRIORITY

6

P
age 13



STRATEGIC OUTCOMES  - final steps to achieving our mission

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

Nuclear Materials 

WHAT ARE NUCLEAR MATERIALS?

HOW ARE THE MATERIALS MANAGED?

WHAT HAS HAPPENED SINCE 2005?

WHAT HAS TO HAPPEN NEXT?

The NDA owns an inventory of plutonium and uranium. Known collectively as 
‘nuclear materials’, all are by-products from different phases of the fuel cycle, 
including the reprocessing of spent fuel.

All nuclear materials are managed safely and securely under exacting standards 
set by the International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) regulations.  
The independent Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR) is responsible for regulating 
nuclear safety and security across the UK and its inspectors ensure that site 
licensees meet stringent requirements.

Options are being developed for using plutonium in new fuels, and research is 
being carried out on technologies. The NDA has largely completed uranic material 
production and consolidation.

All nuclear materials will be either converted into new fuel for nuclear reactors 
or immobilised and stored until a permanent UK disposal facility is developed. 
Consolidation is ongoing. Some hazardous uranics must be treated and repackaged 
for long-term storage, while Sellafield’s plutonium inventory will be repackaged.  
The government will reach a decision on possible re-use or disposal following 
completion of the technical studies.

PROGRESS  
 80% 95%

ALL PLUTONIUM
CONSOLIDATED

THE NEXT 4 STRATEGIC
OUTCOMES TO BE 
ACHIEVED

ALL PLUTONIUM
PRODUCED

86%
ALL URANIUM
PRODUCED

86%
ALL URANIUM
CONSOLIDATED

PLUTONIUM Est. date of completion

ALL PLUTONIUM PRODUCED   2021 

ALL PLUTONIUM CONSOLIDATED   2019 

ALL PLUTONIUM REPACKED    2060 

ALL PLUTONIUM IN INTERIM STORAGE  2060

ALL PLUTONIUM REUSED OR DISPOSED 2120

URANICS

ALL URANIUM PRODUCED 2021 

ALL URANIUM CONSOLIDATED 2025 

ALL URANIUM TREATED 2055 

ALL URANIUM IN INTERIM STORAGE   2055

ALL URANIUM REUSED OR DISPOSED  2120

1

6

2

7

3

8

4

5

9

10

R
E

U
S

E
/D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

R
E

U
S

E
/D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

ONR PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY - SINCE 2005

Plutonium Uranics
Opening inventory 102 te
Produced  38 te
Total  140 te

Opening inventory 47,000 te
Produced  7,000 te
Total  54,000 te

MISSION 
END

OBJECTIVE 

To ensure safe, secure and cost-effective lifecycle 
management of nuclear materials. Strategy 2016, p50

Priorities

2 1 6 7

7

P
age 14



PLUTONIUM - To ensure the safe and secure management of separated plutonium stocks held by the NDA and to work with the government to develop a long-term solution. Strategy 2016, p52

1.6

ALL PLUTONIUM CONSOLIDATED BY 2019

0.4

80% COMPLETE

0
repacked 

ALL PLUTONIUM REPACKED IN LONG TERM 
CONTAINERS BY 2060

Magnox and THORP reprocessing
- Sellafield

36
quantity
produced

still to be
produced

2

ALL PLUTONIUM PRODUCED BY 2021

95% COMPLETE

URANICS - To ensure management and disposition of our uranics inventory. Strategy 2016, p54

15,000
consolidated still to 

consolidate

Consolidate stocks at Capenhurst 

ALL URANIUM CONSOLIDATED BY 2025

3,000

84% COMPLETE

Uranics store - Capenhurst
THORP Product Store - Sellafield

30,000
current 
inventory

ALL URANIUM IN LONG TERM 
STORAGE BY 2055

NO DISPOSAL FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS. 
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) 

sold/
disposed 

ALL URANIUM REUSED OR DISPOSED OF 
BY 2120

Magnox reprocessing - Sellafield

6,000
quantities 
produced

still to be 
produced

1,000

ALL URANIUM PRODUCED BY 2021

86% COMPLETE

still to be
sold/disposed 

NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF)

0
reused or 
disposed

still to be 
reused 
or disposed

140

0% COMPLETE

consolidated still to
consolidate

still to repack 

140

0% COMPLETE

STRATEGIC DECISION

2% COMPLETE

Consolidate inventory at Sellafield

<1,000 53,100

NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
SPRS Re-treatment plant (SRP)
currently in design phase - Sellafield

1,000
treated still to

treat

22,000

ALL URANIUM TREATED BY 2055

4% COMPLETE

NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
Legacy Cylinder Facility currently in 
initiation phase - Capenhurst

ALL PLUTONIUM REUSED OR 
DISPOSED OF BY 2120

Product and Residue Stores - Sellafield

0
current 
inventory

ALL PLUTONIUM IN MODERN INTERIM 
STORAGE BY 2060

140

0% COMPLETE

total

38 2
total total

140

total

7,000
total

18,000
total

23,000

Strategic 
Outcomes

Capability

Inventory

In 2019, work continues to complete reprocessing and consolidate plutonium at Sellafield.

Opening 
stock
2005 

102te

Outputs

Waste

Redundant 
Buildings

STRATEGIC DECISION

Quantities produced 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1           (tonnes) 

1

Consolidation
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2        (tonnes) 

2 3

Repacking
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3       (tonnes) 

estimated
total 

Interim storage
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 4            (tonnes) 

4

Reuse/Disposal
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 5        (tonnes) 

Strategic 
Outcomes

Capability

Inventory

47,000te

Quantities produced 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1     (tonnes) 

6

Consolidation
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2       (tonnes) 

7

Treatment
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3        (tonnes) 

8

23,000
still to 
be stored

Interim storage
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 4     (tonnes) 

Reuse/Disposal
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 5       (tonnes) 

9 10

Outputs

Waste

Redundant 
Buildings

In 2019, work continues to complete reprocessing and consolidate uranics at Capenhurst.

When the NDA was established, 102 tonnes of 
plutonium had already been produced from 
reprocessing. 

The NDA took the decision to consolidate all plutonium
in new storage at Sellafield. The plutonium inventory will 
however, need repacking into long-term storage 
containers.

A major capital project is currently in progress to provide the 
capability to repack plutonium in new containers. Packages will 
be prioritised for repacking. By 2030 the current highest risk 
packages will have been repacked.

Following repacking, all containers will be stored in the 
Sellafield Product and Residue Stores pending a decision 
on plutonium future management. New store capacity will 
be required to achieve the outcome.

Nuclear materials will need to be conditioned prior to 
transferring to a final disposal facility. Strategic options 
are currently being developed for the final management 
of this nuclear material.

When the NDA was established 47,000 te of uranium
had already been produced from reprocessing or from 
an enrichment process.

The NDA is consolidating the vast bulk of uranic material 
at Capenhurst. A programme to move some Magnox 
Depleted Uranium (MDU) from Chapelcross to Capenhurst
was completed in 2010.

Uranium hexaflouride (HEX) is a chemically hazardous 
by-product of the uranium enrichment process. A new facility 
is currently being designed in order to repackage 22,000 te of 
HEX at Capenhurst. After it is repackaged the HEX will be 
treated to remove the chemical hazard making it suitable for 
long-term storage.

Remaining nuclear materials may need to be conditioned prior 
to transferring to a final disposal. Strategic options are currently 
being developed for the final management of this nuclear 
material.

NDA-owned Magnox Depleted Uranium (MDU), 
a product of spent fuel reprocessing, is stored in 
drums at Capenhurst. This will be held in storage until 
decisions are agreed on long-term management.

57% COMPLETE

Nuclear Materials To ensure safe, secure and cost-effective 
lifecycle management of our nuclear materials.  
Strategy 2016, p50

Plutonium
Opening inventory  
Produced 
Total  

Uranics
Opening inventory 
Produced 
Total 

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY - SINCE 2005

5

GROUP
PRIORITY

102 te
38 te

140 te

47,000 te
7,000 te

54,000 te

140
still to be 
stored

GROUP
PRIORITY

GROUP
PRIORITY

estimated
total 

54,00053,000
estimated
total 

GROUP
PRIORITY

estimated 
total 

140

ONR
PRIORITY

Opening 
stock
2005 

GROUP
PRIORITY

8

P
age 15



Integrated Waste 
Management

PROGRESS

STRATEGIC OUTCOMES - final steps to achieving our missionWHAT IS INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT?

HOW ARE THE WASTES MANAGED?

WHAT HAS HAPPENED SINCE 2005?

WHAT HAS TO HAPPEN NEXT?

Large quantities of diverse radioctive waste have been accumulating since the 
1950s, and continue to arise. Managing that, and other conventional hazardous 
waste, is one of the NDA’s biggest challenges.

Wastes are characterised, treated appropriately according to radioactivity levels 
and handling requirements, before being packaged for long-term storage and/or 
transport and disposal. Low Level Waste (LLW) is disposed of and higher activity 
waste is stored pending development of a final disposal route.   

The NDA has taken the decision to consolidate some Intermediate Level Waste 
(ILW) at regional stores, avoiding the need to construct a store at each site.  
We are repackaging material where necessary and investigating more 
sustainable treatments for all waste categories. We’ve followed the waste 
hierarchy principle and put in place a range of waste management services that 
has preserved capacity at the LLWR, meaning we no longer have to build a 
second repository.

Reprocessing spent fuel, which produces highly radioactive liquid waste, is due 
to end in 2020. We are constructing new waste treatment plants as required. 
Permanent disposal facilities must be constructed for all higher activity waste.

 
 

HIGH LEVEL WASTE

ALL HLW PRODUCED   2030 

ALL HLW TREATED  2030 

ALL HLW IN INTERIM STORAGE    2030 

ALL OVERSEAS HLW EXPORTED 2025

ALL HLW DISPOSED 2104 

- Final disposal operational 2075

INTERMEDIATE LEVEL WASTE

ALL ILW PRODUCED 2120 

ALL LEGACY WASTE RETRIEVED 2046 

ALL ILW TREATED   2120 

ALL ILW IN INTERIM STORAGE  2120

ALL ILW DISPOSED 2125*

- Final disposal operational 2040

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

LL
W

R
 +

 L
A

N
D

F
IL

L
D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

D
IS

P
O

S
A

L

ONR PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

GROUP PRIORITY

HMG PRIORITY 

HMG PRIORITY 

LOW LEVEL WASTE

ALL LLW PRODUCED    2125 

ALL LLW DIVERSION COMPLETED  2125 

ALL LLW DISPOSED      2125 

ALL VLLW DISPOSED  2125

10

11

12

13

14

Strategy 2016, p58

OBJECTIVE  
To ensure that wastes are managed in a manner that protects people 
and the environment, now and in the future, and in ways that comply 
with government policies and provide value for money. 

THE NEXT 4 STRATEGIC
OUTCOMES TO BE 
ACHIEVED

41% 63%
ALL OVERSEAS
HLW EXPORTED

ALL HLW (LIQUID)
PRODUCED

70%
ALL HLW  
(CONDENSED LIQUID)
TREATED

80%
ALL HLW (SOLID)
IN INTERIM 
STORAGE

13 10 11 12

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY TO DISPOSE - SINCE 2005

Intermediate Level WasteHigh Level Waste Low Level Waste
(volume)
Raw 189,000 m3

Packaged 393,000 m3

(volume)
Raw 3,920 m3

Packaged 1,630 m3

(volume)
Raw 724,000 m3

Packaged 255,000 m3

* th
e 

po
lic

y 
fo

r 
S

co
tla

nd
 is

 to
 h

av
e 

ne
ar

 s
ur

fa
ce

 d
is

po
sa

l, 
th

e 
fin

al
 d

ec
is

io
n 

on
 w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ot
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r 

in
 th

is
 d

at
e.

Est. date of completion Priorities
MISSION 

END

9

P
age 16



Integrated Waste 
Management

To ensure that wastes are managed in a manner 
that protects people and the environment, 
now and in the future, and in ways that comply with
government policies and provide value for money.  
Strategy 2016, p58

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY TO DISPOSE - SINCE 2005

Intermediate Level Waste
(packaged volume)
Raw waste
Packaged waste  

- 189,000 m3

- 393,000 m3

INTERMEDIATE LEVEL WASTE

1,300
retrieved 
since 2005

still to 
retrieve

New technology and capability projects 
to retrieve legacy waste 

ALL LEGACY WASTE RETRIEVED BY 2046

20,000

6% COMPLETE

53,000
current 
inventory 

ALL ILW IN INTERIM STORAGE
BY 2120

NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) 

0 
disposed 
of 

still to be 
disposed 

393,000

0% COMPLETE

Waste from operations and 
decommissioning

55,000
still to  
produce

113,000

ALL ILW PRODUCED BY 2120

33% COMPLETE

ALL ILW DISPOSED OF BY 2125 

STRATEGIC DECISION

New capability required

17,000
treated still to 

treat

175,000

ALL ILW TREATED BY 2120

- To manage radioactive waste and dispose of it where possible, or place it in safe, secure and suitable storage, ensuring the delivery of UK and
devolved administrations policies. Strategy 2016, p61

quantity 
produced

9% COMPLETE

393,000
estimated 
total

estimated
total

192,000
estimated
total

21,300
estimated
total

168,000

Strategic 
Outcomes

Capability

Inventory

Quantities produced 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1     (raw waste vol.m3)

Legacy ponds & silos
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2   (raw waste vol.m3)

5 6

Treatment
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3        (raw waste vol.m3)

7

Interim storage
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 4   (packaged waste vol.m3)

8 9

Disposal
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 5          (packaged waste vol.m3)

Outputs

Redundant 
Buildings

In 2019, ILW continues to be produced with a focus on retrieving waste from legacy ponds and silos.

Future waste will be produced in the form of buildings 
and equipment. This quantity will fluctuate as the 
categories and volumes of radioactive waste are better
understood over time.

Retrieval of waste from the legacy ponds and silos is the NDA’s
highest priority and will reduce the risk from these facilities.

Raw ILW requires different types of treatment so it can be 
conditioned and packaged for storage. Dozens of treatment 
plants already operate across the 17 sites, while others are 
under construction or in planning. Approximately 40 new 
treatment plants will be required to complete the mission.

7% of the mission completed since NDA was formed.
Approximately 11 new stores will be required to 
complete the mission to support Sellafield and 
long term storage on Scottish sites.

The UK government is working with technical specialists, 
communities and regulators to develop a geological 
disposal facility for ILW in England and Wales. The policy 
for Scotland is to have near surface disposal. 

13% COMPLETE

raw waste
in store 2005

10,800m3

- final disposal operational
in 2040

ONR
PRIORITY

estimated 
total

393,000340,000
still to
be stored

LOW LEVEL WASTE

LLW produced from NDA operations and 
decommissioning

quantities 
produced 

estimated to 
be produced

569,000

ALL LLW PRODUCED BY 2129

21% COMPLETE

- To manage radioactive waste and dispose of it where possible, or place it in safe, secure and suitable storage, ensuring the delivery of UK and devolved
administrations policies.  Strategy 2016, p61

A number of on site and off site licensed disposal routes.

105,000
VLLW disposed VLLW estimated 

still to dispose

3,439,000

ALL VLLW DISPOSED OF BY 2129

x2 sites Low Level Waste Repository and Dounreay 

47,000
LLW disposed LLW estimated 

still to dispose

208,000

ALL LLW DISPOSED OF BY 2129

Diversion capabilities include - metal treatment and
incineration

diverted estimated still 
to divert

352,000

ALL LLW DIVERSION COMPLETED BY 2129

13% COMPLETE

155,000 51,500
estimated
total

724,000
estimated
total

403,500
estimated
total

3,544,000
estimated
total

255,000

Strategic 
Outcomes

Capability

Inventory

Quantities produced 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1      (raw waste vol.m3)

1

Diversion 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2      (raw waste vol.m3)

2

Disposal LLW
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3      (packaged waste vol.m3)

3

Disposal VLLW
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 4        (reported vol.m3)(landfill)

Redundant 
Buildings

OutputsIn 2019, work continues to divert LLW away from the Low Level Waste Repository prolonging the life of the facility.

4

Large quantities of LLW arise from operating facilities, and 
will increasingly be produced over the next 100 years as sites 
are demolished. LLW contains only 0.0001% of overall 
radioactivity.

NDA instigated a policy of treating as much of the LLW as possible. The 
treatment separates out the radioactive and non radioactive parts so that 
only the LLW component needs to be disposed of. This has significantly
reduced the estimated disposal volumes of LLW. Of the LLW that remains
some of this is treated using supercompaction to reduce its volume. 

The LLW Repository (LLWR) receives waste from NDA sites and other 
UK industries. For many decades, it was the UK’s only licensed site where 
all types of LLW could be disposed of.  Now Dounreay has two LLW vaults 
in operation with up to four more planned.

LLW with the very lowest levels of radioactivity, mainly soils and rubble, is known 
as VLLW. This can be disposed of: on site, for some Sellafield wastes; at specially 
licensed landfill sites; or other UK landfill sites, via the services provided by the 
LLW Repository. 

18% COMPLETE 3% COMPLETE

Low Level Waste
(packaged volume)
Raw waste 
Packaged waste  

- 724,000 m3

- 255,000 m3

New capability required

10

P
age 17



Integrated Waste 
Management

To ensure that wastes are managed in a manner 
that protects people and the environment, 
now and in the future, and in ways that comply with
government policies and provide value for money.  
Strategy 2016, p58

High Level Waste
(packaged volume)
Raw waste
Packaged  

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY TO DISPOSE - SINCE 2005

3,920 m3

1,630 m3

HIGH LEVEL WASTE

Vitrified Product Store (VPS) 

1,200
current 
inventory 

ALL HIGH LEVEL WASTE IN INTERIM STORAGE BY 2030

150
exported total 

1,630

Highly Active Storage Tanks

2,470
still to  
produce

1,450

ALL HIGH LEVEL LIQUID PRODUCED BY 2030 
(INCLUDE POST OPERATIONAL CLEAN OUT)

63% COMPLETE

ALL OVERSEAS HIGH LEVEL WASTE EXPORTED BY 2025

Waste Vitrification Plant

510
treated still to 

treat

ALL HIGH LEVEL WASTE TREATED BY 2030

- To manage radioactive waste and dispose of it where possible, or place it in safe, secure and suitable storage, ensuring the delivery of UK and devolved
administrations policies. Strategy 2016, p61

quantity 
produced 

70% COMPLETE

1,480
estimated 
total 

total

730
total

3,920

Strategic 
Outcomes

Capability

Inventory

Quantities produced 
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1  (raw waste vol.m3)

10

Treatment
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2

(raw waste vol.m3)

11

Interim storage
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3      (packaged vol.m3)

81% COMPLETE

12
13

Disposal/Export
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 4        (packaged vol.m3)

Redundant 
Buildings

OutputsIn 2019, work will continue to treat and store HLW on an interim basis.

In the UK, HLW exists only at Sellafield. In its raw form, it is a highly 
active liquor (HAL) by-product from THORP and Magnox, both are 
due to stop reprocessing by 2020. Evaporator plants reduce the 
liquid volumes before transfer to storage tanks. 

The liquid waste is converted to a solid glass block in a process
known as vitrification. This waste form holds the radioactive 
components within the glass matrix in a form which can be 
disposed.

The vitrified product will be stored in Sellafield’s Vitrified Product Store(s) 
where it will remain until a UK disposal facility becomes available. Sellafield also earns revenue by processing spent fuel for overseas customers. 

All the waste from these operations is returned as part of contractual 
requirements. 41% of all overseas HLW has been exported.

still to be 
exported or 
disposed 

1,480

LIQUID CONDENSED 
LIQUID

ALL HIGH LEVEL WASTE DISPOSED BY 2104

220

SOLID

Residue Export Facility
NO FACILITY CURRENTLY EXISTS
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) 

9% COMPLETE

280
still to
store

14

GROUP
PRIORITY

GROUP
PRIORITY

GROUP
PRIORITY

- Final HLW disposal available from 2075

Low Level Waste Repository in Cumbria Inside the ILW store at Trawsfynydd Vitrified HLW Store at Sellafield

11

P
age 18



STRATEGIC OUTCOMES - final steps to achieving our mission

Site Decommissioning
and Remediation

PROGRESS

WHAT IS SITE DECOMMISSIONING AND REMEDIATION?

WHAT HAS TO BE DONE?

WHAT HAS HAPPENED SINCE 2005?

WHAT HAS TO HAPPEN NEXT?

The NDA is cleaning up each site safely and cost-effectively for eventual 
release. This requires all facilities to be decommissioned, waste removed, 
structures demolished and the land remediated.

The NDA must define the final condition for each site, including any 
remaining structures, infrastructure such as roads or services and the land 
itself. This influences future plans and near-term work targets, and shapes 
current activities. 

Many structures have already been dismantled and demolished, and 
land released. The NDA is assessing alternatives for the final stages of 
decommissioning that could lead to simple regulatory controls, earlier 
release of land and the potential for future employment opportunities 
when sites are released. 

Decommissioning, dismantling and remediation activities are continuing at 
all sites, as well as regulatory reviews to determine the approach to final 
site clearance.

 

BUILDINGS 
COMPLETED 
DECOMMISSIONING

BUILDINGS
COMPLETED 
PRIMARY 
FUNCTION

BUILDINGS 
DEMOLISHED
OR REUSED

LAND 
DEDESIGNATED
OR REUSED

DECOMMISSIONING AND DEMOLITION

OPERATIONAL AND PLANNED

ALL BUILDINGS DECOMMISSIONED  2125

ALL BUILDINGS DEMOLISHED OR REUSED  2125

ALL PLANNED NEW BUILDINGS OPERATIONAL  2090  

ALL BUILDINGS PRIMARY FUNCTION COMPLETED    2125

SITES

ALL SITES IN INTERIM STATE 2125
- Next site achieve its interim state (Bradwell) 2019 

ALL SITES MISSION COMPLETED 2125
- First site to complete its mission (Winfrith) 2025 

ALL CONTAMINATED LAND REMEDIATED 2125
- Next land to be remediated (Harwell) 2020 

ALL LAND DEDESIGNATED OR REUSED 2125
- Next land to be dedesignated/reused (LLWR) 2020

3

4

1

5

2

6

7

8

Strategy 2016, p24

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY - SINCE 2005

SitesBuildings (radioactive) Land (designated hectares) Land (remediated hectares)

Opening stock 17
Final disposal tbc  ?
Total 17 

Opening stock 1,046
Final disposal tbc ?
Total  1,046

Opening stock 1,046
Interim State 79
Possible contamination 650
End State  317
Total  1,046

Opening stock  803
New builds 90
Total 893

OBJECTIVE  

To decommission and remediate our designated 
sites, and release them for other uses.

KEY STEPS TO 
ACHIEVING THE 
STRATEGIC
OUTCOMES

D
E

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

E
D

 
A

N
D

 D
E

M
O

LI
S

H
E

D
 

D
E

D
E

S
IG

N
A

T
E

D
 O

R
 

R
E

U
S

E
D

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D

MISSION 
ENDEst. date of completion

2 3 4 8

Priorities

46% 26% 23% 9%

12

P
age 19



completed primary 
function since 2005

411

46% COMPLETED PRIMARY FUNCTION

ALL PLANNED NEW BUILDINGS OPERATIONAL BY 2090

392
currently
operational

in decontamination
and dismantling

completed 
decommissioning
since 2005

68 236

26% COMPLETED DECOMMISSIONING (not including new builds)

ALL BUILDINGS TO HAVE COMPLETED DECOMMISSIONING BY 2125

57
in post operational 
clean out

in 
demolition

demolished or
reuse since 2005

16 205

23% DEMOLISHED OR REUSED

ALL BUILDINGS DEMOLISHED OR REUSED BY 2125

15
awaiting 
demolition

STRATEGIC 
DECISION

DECOMMISSIONING (radioactive buildings) -  To deliver Site End States as soon as reasonably practicable with a progressive reduction of risk and hazard. Strategy 2016, p28

LAND USE (sites) -  To optimise the reuse of NDA sites. Strategy 2016, p38

total 
land
dedesignated

total 
land 
reused

93 tbd

9% COMPLETE

650

ALL CONTAMINATED LAND REMEDIATED BY 2125

79
interim state

total still to
be dedesignated 
or reused

953

in care and 
maintenance

50

ALL SITES IN INTERIM STATE BY 2120

operational sites

17 0
sites that have 
completed the mission

1,046
hectares

317
end state

803
No. of 

radioactive 
buildings

(not 
including 

new builds)

Strategic 
Outcomes

Inventory

Operational and planned
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1        (No. of radioactive buildings)

1

Decommissioning
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2            (No. of radioactive buildings)

3

Demolition or reuse
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3        (No. of radioactive buildings)

Since 2005 26% of operational buildings have been decommissioned.NDA sites are making good progress decommissioning buildings that are no longer required, 
however a number of new builds are still required to deliver the Mission.

Strategic 
Outcomes

Inventory

The NDA Mission is not complete until all Designated Directions associated with the land have been removed. 
Since 2005 we have completed 9% of the mission.

Sites status
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 1      (No. of sites)

ALL SITES MISSION COMPLETED BY 2125

5

Remediation of land
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 2        (hectares)

ALL LAND DEDESIGNATED OR REUSED BY 2125

Dedesignated or reused land
- RISK REDUCTION STEP 3 (hectares)

When radioactive buildings near the end of their operational life, a phase of work begins to 
move the plant into decommissioning. The phase generally starts well before operations 
finish and removes most, if not all nuclear hazards. New buildings are still to be built to 
support the decommissioning mission, for example to package and temporarily store waste. 
Ultimately, these new buildings will go through the same process once their operational life 
is complete.

The current strategy for decommissioning Magnox reactors is to pause at an interim state termed 'Care and Maintenance', 
where structures are made safe for several decades before final site clearance occurs. The NDA is reviewing the Magnox 
strategy to determine whether this is appropriate as a blanket strategy for all reactors in the Magnox fleet. 

Final demolition is dominated by non nuclear risks. The extent of final
dismantling and demolition depends on the agreed end state. It typically 
generates large volumes of waste, a proportion of which may be 
contaminated with radioactivity. 

Bradwell will be the first site in the UK nuclear industry to reach its interim state in 2019.
The first site to complete its mission will be Winfrith in 2025.

The NDA is working with regulators, SLCs and other stakeholders on the optimal end state for each site. The NDA and the 
regulators are reviewing regulation covering the latter stages of decommissioning and clean-up to give SLCs flexibility in 
defining the most appropriate end state for the sites. The NDA is also working with local authorities on their development plans, 
to ensure proposed end states and development plans are aligned.

In 2005, the NDA was given responsibility for 1,046 hectares of land, 
under a 'designating' order by the Secretary of State 'De-designating' this 
order signifies that the NDA's mission is complete. Parts of Berkeley are 
now a college campus while land at Harwell and Winfrith have been 
developed as business parks. 3 hectares of land at Winfrith were 
de-designated in Feb 2019.

4

8

41% REMEDIATED OR CLEARED SINCE 20050% COMPLETE

planned new
builds

90

6

- the next site to reach its interim state by 2019 (Bradwell)
7

- the first site to complete its mission by 2025 (Winfrith)

- the next land to be remediated by 2020 (Harwell) - the next land to be dedesignated or reused by 2020 (LLWR)

Site Decommissioning
and Remediation

To decommission and 
remediate our designated 
sites, and release 
them for other uses.  
Strategy 2016, p24

0
sites in 
interim state

Buildings (radioactive) 
Opening stock  
New builds 
Total  

Sites
Opening stock 
Final disposal tbc
Total 

ESTIMATED LIFETIME INVENTORY - SINCE 2005

803
90

893

17
?

17

Land (designated hectares)

Opening stock 
Final disposal tbc
Total 

1,046
 ?

1,046

Opening 
stock
2005 

MISSION END
Opening 

stock
2005 

Land (remediated hectares)

Opening stock 
Interim State
Possible contamination
End state
Total

1,046
79

650
317

1,046

ALL BUILDINGS COMPLETED PRIMARY FUNCTION BY 21252

total area 
potential/known
land contaminated

1,046 
total

411 
total

236 
total

13

P
age 20



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 120819

Nuclear Position Statements

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager

Summary

In recognition of the role that the nuclear sector plays in Copeland’s economy and community, 
since 2015 the Council has maintained a suite of Nuclear Position Statements. These 
statements ensure that the Council’s interactions with the nuclear sector consistently reflect 
the Council’s agreed position on nuclear matters.

In June, the Board agreed to the proposed process for adoption of the statements by the 
council. This paper concludes the next step of that process: production of a consolidated set 
of position statements incorporating comments from members of the Board.

Recommendations

That members of the Board:

1. Agree the consolidated draft position statements, subject to final amendments;
2. Escalate the Position Statements for endorsement by Executive Committee;
3. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive Officer in cooperation with the Chair of the 

Board and the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services to review any 
statements where there is an urgent need, before the next annual update.

1. Introduction

1.1. In recognition of the role that the nuclear sector plays in Copeland’s economy, 
community and environment, since 2015 the Council has maintained a suite of 
Nuclear Position Statements. These statements ensure that the Council’s interactions 
with nuclear sector partners consistently reflect the Council agreed position on 
nuclear matters.

2. Background

2.1. Members will recall that, in June it was agreed that, at the next Board meeting, an 
updated set of statements would be presented for approval and a request made to 
escalate these agreed statements for consideration by Executive Committee and 
subsequently for endorsement by Full Council.

2.2. This set of consolidated statements was issued to members on 25th July 2019, with a 
request to provide any further comment prior to this meeting.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



3. Next Steps

3.1. Members are requested to:

 Agree the consolidated position statements, subject to final amendments;
 Escalate the Position Statements for consideration by Executive Committee;
 Delegate authority to the Chief Executive Officer in cooperation with the Chair of 

the Board and the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services to review 
any statements where there is an urgent need, before the next annual update.

Page 22



1

STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 120819

Nuclear Projects Update 

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Smith, Nuclear Programmes and Projects Manager

Summary and Recommendation:

This paper provides a summary update of key projects specifically the Moorside Project, and 
the Governments proposals for the provision of a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) for 
higher activity radioactive waste.  

Members are asked to;

1. Note the current position in relation to the Moorside Project.
2. Agree to delegate the approval of the consultation response to the Regulated Asset Base 

funding model for new nuclear projects consultation to the Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the Chair of SNEB and the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate 
Services.

3. Note the publication by Government of the National Policy Statement for a GDF and 
support proposals to continue the Member briefing programme on the Government’s 
proposals to provide a GDF. 

1. The Moorside Project

Members will recall that Toshiba/NuGeneration Ltd ceased any further development of the Moorside 
Project in March this year, when the site returned to the ownership of the Nuclear Decommissioning 
Authority (NDA).

Since then there are two further developments for Members’ interest.

1.1 Regulated Asset Base (RAB) model for new nuclear projects

On 22nd July, Government launched a consultation process seeking views, on their proposals for a 
Regulated Asset Base (RAB) funding model for new nuclear projects, and to seek views from 
stakeholders on its high-level design principles. A full copy of the consultation document can be 
viewed at the following link; https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/regulated-asset-base-
rab-model-for-nuclear.

In recognition of the difficulties experienced by developers of large-scale nuclear power-generation 
projects Government have developed a revised funding model which they propose will be sustainable 
and represent value for money for consumers. RAB-funded infrastructure schemes have attracted 
investment from the private sector of around £160 billion over the last 30 years. The RAB model 
involves an economic regulator granting a licence to a company to charge a regulated price to users 
of the infrastructure. The RAB model is more fully described in Box 1 below.

Page 23

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/regulated-asset-base-rab-model-for-nuclear
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/regulated-asset-base-rab-model-for-nuclear


2

The Government has concluded that by providing regulated returns a RAB model has the potential to 
reduce the cost of raising private finance for new nuclear projects, thereby reducing consumer bills 
and maximising value for money for consumers and taxpayers. The consultation closes on 14th 
October. 

In the introduction to the consultation, Government identifies the important role that nuclear power 
plants play currently, in generating around 20% of our power needs and in the future to meet growing 
demands and contribute to our targets around zero greenhouse-gas emissions by 2050. The document 
states that Government ‘should be prepared to support further new nuclear projects in the years 
ahead, if they can be delivered at a competitive price and each individual project represents value for 
money’.

The primary objective of a nuclear RAB model would be to enable the delivery of new nuclear projects 
and reduce the cost of this additional nuclear capacity. This would be achieved through: 

a) attracting private capital to finance new nuclear projects in the UK; 

b) incentivising the private sector, through robust regulatory mechanisms and competition 
where possible, to deliver new nuclear projects on time and to budget; and 

c) enabling a financing structure and cost of capital which is as efficient as possible in order to 
reduce the total financing costs of new nuclear projects to consumers.  

Page 24



3

The Government envisage that in order to attract low cost capital at the scale required, a nuclear RAB 
model would have the following key elements: 

a) Government protection for investors and consumers against specific remote, low 
probability but high impact risk events, through a set of contractual arrangements (the 
‘Government Support Package’ or ‘GSP’); 

b) A fair sharing of costs and risks between consumers and investors, established through an 
‘Economic Regulatory Regime’ (ERR);  

c) An economic regulator (the ‘Regulator’) to operate the ERR; and 

d) A route for funds to be raised from energy suppliers to support new nuclear projects, with 
the amount set through the ERR, during both the construction and operational phases (the 
‘Revenue Stream’).

Details regarding these elements are described further in the consultation document. 

Conclusion:

Whilst the consultation is clearly aimed at nuclear new build developers and financiers it is proposed 
that the Council submit a high-level response to the consultation, supporting the principles of 
Government identifying a model that allows such large scale schemes, as that proposed for the 
Moorside site, to be funded in a sustainable and affordable manner for both investors and consumers. 
It is proposed that the final submission be approved for submission by the Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Chair of SNEB and the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services. 

1.2 New Nuclear Local Authorities Group (NNLAG) – Conference and Hinkley Point Longitudinal 
Study

The New Nuclear Local Authorities Group (NNLAG) is a special interest group of the Local Government 
Association. Its membership is made up of those local authorities who are involved in and/or impacted 
by proposals for new large-scale nuclear new build projects. Copeland Borough Council is a member, 
and the organisation’s secretarial and administrative support is currently led by the Isle of Anglesey 
County Council. 

NNLAG recently held its biennial conference in Somerset between 19th and 21st June.  The Council was 
represented by Cllr Moore, Nuclear and Corporate Services Portfolio Holder and Mitchell McCombe, 
Nuclear Sector Development Officer. The conference received a presentation from Chris Bowbrick, 
Deputy Director for Nuclear Generation Policy, Sector Deal and International at the Department for 
Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) on the Government’s clean growth and zero carbon 
ambitions and the case for nuclear new build. There was then an opportunity to answer questions on 
the Energy White Paper and Regulatory Asset Base model for nuclear projects.  The conference also 
included updates from all local authorities hosting proposals for new nuclear sites in which Cllr Moore 
updated delegates on the current situation with Moorside and the development of a nuclear 
prospectus. Additionally the conference heard from the Heart of the South West LEP, the National 
College for Nuclear Southern Hub and the local Construction, Skills, & Innovation Centre. Delegates 

Page 25



4

were then provided with an opportunity to visit these facilities as well as visit the Hinkley Point C 
construction site.

The conference also heard an update from consultants from Oxford Brookes University appointed to 
carry out a ‘Longitudinal Study’ of the economic impacts of Hinkley Point C power station 
development. Members may recall that the Council agreed to be a contributing partner to the study 
which will provide useful learning and recommendations for future NNB projects, and will be helpful 
to us if/when the Moorside project comes back on stream.  It could also be relevant for other NSIPs 
and major projects. The final draft of the report is expected in September and a copy will be made 
available to SNEB Members at the next meeting. 

Finally, publication by Government of a revised National Policy Statement (NPS) for new nuclear 
power stations to cover the period 2026 to 2035 is still awaited. The NPS as well as providing the 
planning and development guidance for developers to develop their proposals for a Development 
Consent Order application and the Planning Inspectorate to assess those applications, should also 
confirm the nomination of the Moorside for inclusion within the range of sites expected to be 
deployed within this period.

2. Geological Disposal Infrastructure Siting Process

Members will recall that in December of last year, Government published the policy document 
‘Working with Communities: long term management of higher activity radioactive wastes’, which 
explains how Government will engage with local authorities and communities throughout the siting 
process, to find a willing community and a suitable site for a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF). Since 
then a number of briefing sessions have been held with Members to explore the details of the new 
process, including the most recent held on 17th July when officials from Radioactive Waste 
Management (RWM) Ltd attended. Members will recall that RWM are tasked by Government with 
taking forward the implementation of the Government’s policy

Members are reminded that the Council’s current position regarding the Government’s process to 
find a willing community and suitable site for a GDF is as per the Council Statement following 
Government’s launch of ‘Implementing Geological Disposal – Working with Communities’ in 
December 2018 which is repeated below.

The Council supports the Government’s approach to the safe disposal of higher radioactive 
wastes through the provision of a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) and, as host community 
for the vast majority of the wastes that would be disposed of in the GDF, we will continue to 
press the Government to progress the process, recognising the risk to the environment and 
local communities that the current interim storage of this waste and the continued delay in 
bringing forward a site for a GDF, presents. 

At this stage, the Council has no preference or position with regard to the location of the GDF 
locally or nationally but recognises that the Copeland community is affected regardless of the 
final choice of site for a GDF. 

The Council takes the view that the current planning assumption date for the provision of the 
GDF of 2040 is unrealistic and will seek from Government a more realistic timescale and 
information on what the plans are for long-term storage of these waste materials.

Page 26



5

2.1 National Policy Statement (NPS) for Geological Disposal Infrastructure

In July, Government published the ‘National Policy Statement (NPS) for Geological Disposal 
Infrastructure’ (see link https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-
for-geological-disposal-infrastructure ). This followed a period of consultation between January and 
April on a draft document, on which the Council, through discussion at a previous meeting of SNEB, 
provided comments. Members will recall that the proposal for a GDF had previously been determined 
as a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP) under the Planning Act 2008 and as such 
Government is required to prepare a NPS. The aim of the NPS is to:

1) Guide the developer (RWM Ltd) in preparing any application for development consent;

2) Guide the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) to consider the application; and

3) Provide the framework to allow the Secretary of State to consider the recommendation from 
PINS and make a decision on the Development Consent Application.  

The NPS for geological disposal covers:

 Any deep geological facility for disposing of waste; and
 The deep borehole investigations necessary to characterise the geology at a particular site to 

enable assessment of the site’s suitability.

The NPS sets out:

 The Infrastructure covered by the NPS;

 Considerations for (a) borehole investigations and (b) the development of the GDF itself along 
with related sustainability and habitats considerations as assessed by the Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA) and Habitats Regulations Assessments (HRA);

 The policy framework for the GDF and the need for geological disposal infrastructure;

 Assessment principles including those around Health, Safety, Security and Environment; and

 Impacts and Mitigation across a broad range of economic, social, health and environmental 
considerations.

As with any Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project, the role of local planning authorities is 
limited.  However, within any NSIP there are requirements to consult communities, statutory bodies 
and other interested parties:

 Before submitting an application for development consent, the Planning Act 2008 requires 
that the development must be publicised, and a ‘Statement of Community Consultation’ 
produced.

 Once the application for development consent is submitted to the Secretary of State (SoS), 
the Planning Inspectorate has a period of 28 days to decide if the application meets the 
standard required to be accepted for examination. During this period local authorities will be 

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-for-geological-disposal-infrastructure
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-for-geological-disposal-infrastructure


6

invited to make representations to the SoS regarding their view on whether consultation was 
adequate.

 If an application is accepted there will be a 3 month ‘pre-examination’ phase during which the 
public will be able to provide their views on the application. Everyone who makes a relevant 
representation will be invited to attend a meeting chaired by an Inspector.

 The Planning Inspectorate then has 6 months to carry out their examination of the application. 
Relevant local authorities will be able to submit Local Impact Reports and those who made 
representations in the ‘pre-examination’ phase will be able to provide more information on 
their views. Chapter 5 of the NPS for the GDF provides policy and guidance on generic impacts 
that may assist Local Planning Authorities in preparing Local Impact Reports.

2.2 Further Member briefing sessions

At the Member briefing session in July a number of questions relating to the technical aspects of a 
GDF were raised. In view of this and as part of the continuing programme to understand the reasons 
why GDF is the Governments chosen long term management option it is proposed that an invitation 
is extended to representatives from the Committee on Radioactive Waste Management (CoRWM) to 
attend a future Members briefing session.

Page 28


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 4 June 2019
	5 NDA Mission Progress Report
	Appendix A NDA Mission Progress Report

	6 Nuclear Position Statements
	8 Nuclear Projects Update



